
























United States Department of the Interior 
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE 

1849 C Street, NW 

Washington, DC 20240 

H32(2280) 

 

        September 17, 2021 

 

The Honorable Robert S. Matheny 

Town of Zebulon 

1003 N. Arendell Avenue 

Zebulon, NC 27597 

 

Via email to bmatheny@townofzebulon.org 

 

Dear Mayor Matheny: 

 

Thank you for your letter of August 18, 2021, petitioning the Keeper of the National Register of 

Historic Places (Keeper) pursuant to 36 C.F.R. § 60.6(t) to reject the nomination of the Zebulon 

Historic District (District) to the National Register of Historic Places (National Register).   

 

The nomination for the District was received by the Keeper on July 7, 2021, noting the proposed 

historic district as locally significant under Criteria A for commerce, community planning and 

development, and education; and Criteria C for architecture, for the period 1906 to 1971.  Your 

petition extended the typical 45-day review period by 30 days from the date of receipt of your 

petition.  During this extended review period, the nomination and materials submitted by you (the 

Town) and the North Carolina State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) were substantively 

reviewed. 

 

In addition to the materials submitted by the Town and the SHPO, in order to evaluate your 

contentions regarding procedural errors in the nomination process and the objections of the Wake 

County Historic Preservation Commission,  I also reviewed the June 20, 1994, “Certification 

Agreement for Local Governments” among, inter alia, the North Carolina State Historic Preservation 

Office, Wake County, and the Town of Zebulon, which was approved by the National Park Service 

on January 31, 1994, and is  attached to this letter.   Because the District is within the jurisdiction of a 

Certified Local Government (CLG), the procedural requirements of 54 U.S.C. § 302504 apply.   

 

Accordingly, your petition that the nomination for listing of the Zebulon Historic District be rejected 

is granted and the nomination will be returned to the SHPO for consistent with 54 U.S.C. § 302504 

and other applicable laws and regulations.  

 

Sincerely,  

 

 

Joy Beasley 

Associate Director, Cultural Resources, 

Partnerships, and Science 

Keeper of the National Register  

Enclosure: June 20, 1994, “Certification Agreement for Local Governments among, inter 

alia, the North Carolina State Historic Preservation Office, Wake County, and the 

Town of Zebulon 

 

JOY 
BEASLEY

Digitally signed by JOY 
BEASLEY 
Date: 2021.09.17 
13:43:24 -04'00'



 

 

 

cc: Ramona Bartos, Administrator and Deputy State Historic Preservation Officer 

 ramona.bartos@ncdcr.gov 

 

 Wake County Historic Preservation Commission, Jeremy Bradham, Board Clerk,   

 jbradham@cappresinc.org 

 

 Sherry Frear, Chief, National Register of Historic Place and Deputy Keeper, 

 sherry_frear@nps.gov 

 

 James Gabbert, Historian, National Register of Historic Places, 

  james_gabbert@nps.gov 

 

 

 



 
 

 

IN REPLY REFER TO: 

United States Department of the Interior 

 

NATIONAL PARK SERVICE 

1849 C Street, N. W. 

Washington, DC 20240 

 

 

The United States Department of the Interior 

National Park Service 

 

National Register of Historic Places 

Evaluation/Return Sheet 

 

Property Name: Zebulon Historic District, Wake County, North Carolina 

 

Reference Number:  100006811 

 

Reason for Return 

 

The nomination for the Zebulon Historic District is being returned due to prejudicial procedural 

error in the nomination process.  This procedural error was discovered as a result of the Town of 

Zebulon’s August 18, 2021petition to the Keeper per 36 CFR 60.6(t).  This petition pushed the 

final review period forward 30 days, until September 17, 2021. 

 

The Wake County Historic Preservation Commission (WCHPC) serves as the Certified Local 

Government (CLG) authority within the jurisdiction of the Town of Zebulon.  As such, the 

nomination must undergo a review by the WCHPC.  Should the WCHPC recommend the 

nomination, it will have to go through the state review board process as well. 

 

The original decision to bypass the CLG review was based on advice from the NPS.  However, 

the specific circumstances of the Wake County CLG agreement were not taken into account 

when this advice was given.  The State followed procedures based on their understanding of NPS 

guidance, but in doing so inadvertently created a procedural error. 

 

We appreciate the opportunity to review this nomination and hope that you find these comments 

useful.  Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions. I can be reached at (202) 354-

2275 or email at james_gabbert@nps.gov. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 



 

 

 

Jim Gabbert, Historian 

National Register of Historic Places 

9/17/2021 

 
































































































